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United States Department of the Interior

NATIONAL PARK BERVICE
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20240

iN REPLY REFER TO,

The Director of the National Park Service

Gary Everhardt

is pleased to inform you that the historic propercy listed on the
enclosed sheet has heen nominateﬂ by the State Historic Preservation
Officer responsible for your State's implementation of the Natiopal
Historic Pressrvation Act of 1966, P.L. 89-665 (80 Stat: 915), as
smended. It has accordingly been entered in the National Reglster

of Historic Places. A leaflet explaining the National Register is

enclozed for your informatiom and convenlence,
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BHNAME

HISTORIG A

Topsfield Town Common Disgtrict
AND/OR COMMON

Same

B LOCATION |
STREET & NUMBER North Common, ‘Eagt Commn , South Comn' Wasgk c@mn’ High St. Ext, 7
Waghington, Main, High, Howlett streets

. —NOT FOR PUBLICATION
CITY, TOWN CONGRESSIONAL BISTRICT
Topsfield e VICINITY OF Sixth
 STATE CODE , COUNTY cOnE
Maseachusattis 025 BEzsex 009
B CLASSIFICATION -
CATEGORY =~  OWNERSHIP STATUS PRESENT USE
X _DISTRICT __PUBLIC X_OGCUFIED ——AGRICULTURE E_MUSEUN
—BUILDING(S) —PRIVATE wUNOCCURIED —COMMERGIAL X PARK
—ETRUCTURE X.BOTH —WUORKIN PROGRESS - X EDUCATIONAL Z.PRIVATE RESIDEN
SITE PUEBLIC ACQUISITION AGCESSIBLE ~ENTERTAINMENT H.RELIGICUE
—OBJECT —IN PROCESS —YE5: RESTRICTED K GOVERNMENT —SCIENTIFIC
—HEING CONSIDERED X_YES: UNRESTHICTED . _.INDUSTRIAL —TRANSPORTATION
. —NO _MILITARY —_OTHER;
——
EHOWNER OF PROPERTY
NAME .
Multiple
STREET & NUMBER
CITY. TOWN ] STATE
Topgfield . VIGINITY OF . Massachusetks 01983
TALOCATION OF LEGAL DESCRIPTION
COURTHDUSE,
TC. .
nemeinv OF DEED%E Bssex County B ! £ peeds
STREGT & NUMBER
32 Federal Street
CITY. TOWN ’ .. STAIE
Salam : Macsachusetis

REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

TME Inventory of the Historic Assets of the Commomwealth
HARg  (MASS-214, Parson Capen House) i

DATE 1973 .

1935, 36 I ¥_FEDERAL XSTATE _COUNTY __1OCAL
DEROSITORY FOR
SURVEYRECORDS  Massachusebts Historical Commission; Idbrary of Congress
CITY, TOWN . STATE

Boston; Washington, DC Massachusetts 02108
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' i CONDITION " GHECK QNE CHECK QNE
_EXéELLENT __DETERIORATED AINALTERED % _ORIGINAL SITE
x_cood _HUING K_ALYERED % moven  pared9_in 1900

~FALR ' —UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Topsfield Town Common District ig located in the center of the town of Topafield. Tc
the south of the district is the commercial area of town apnd on the other edges of the
Common are scattered residential areas. The diptfict encompasses the only remaining
common land of the township and includes ten religious, oivic and residential buildings.
The area has well-cared for trees, shrubs and monuments, and has no intrusions or drastic
alterations which detract from its appearance. The Popsfield Town Common ig the core of
the local historic district known as the fopgfield Common Historic Digtrict, established
in 1974, ' .

Among the buildings facing south onte the Common is the residence at the corner of Wash-
ington and Main Streeis (#1). It ig two gtories and has a ridge roof pierced by two bric
chimneys: The house ig five baye wide and has a center entrance flanked by zidelights
and gurmounted by a large entablature. Windows have six-over-~siz lights, and the ¢lapbo:
house is painted pale yellow. In the late nineteenth and early twantieth centuries therc
wers side covered porches on the south and east sides of the building.

The Emerson-Jordan House (#2) was bullt in 1808 and is three stories with a hip roof. Tt
ig white clappboard except for the westerly end which is red brick., There iz & two-story
a1l attached to the sast side of the house and a barn to the rear. The house iz five
bays wide and the center entrance has a fanlight and sidelights. Windows have black
louvered shuthers and two-over-two lighta. A porch supported by four square posts extend
the length of the facade, and foux brick chimneys rise £wom each corner of ¥hé’ roof.

The interior contains paneling by the noted Salem builder Samuel MoIntire.

The Parish House (#3) was built in 1853 by Jacob Foster and John H. Potter. Potter, who
had considerable local distinction as a skilled builder, also congtructed the Town Hall.
The Parish House ig & two-gtory, white claphoard, ridge roof building with its gable and
faocing the street. The focal point of the facade is a slightly projesting three-kay
section divided by three pllasters and curmounted by a pediment. The entrance iz centex:
on the First.floor of this section and f£lanked by a window on eithex gide. On the secon
£loor in each of the outer bays there are windows situated beneath arched toldings. The
building is four bays deep and hag a deep cornice. The original steeple was removed in
the early twentleth century.

The oldest building in the distriot is the Parson Capen House ($4) (NHL) which was built
in 1683 and reveals influences of sivteenth and seventeenth century English architectura
The two-gtory house has & steeply pitched roof with a pilastered brick genter chimney.
The building is covered with daxk gtained red oak olapboards and the roof is finished
with wooden handriven shingles, one to three feet long.  There are overhangs with pen-
dants on the front and gable ends. The parscn Capeh Houge was carefully restored in 151
under the direction of George Francisg Dow. : T

On the east side of the Common, facing west, is the Emerscn Conter (#5), a Federal mansi
built in 1814. The two-story. white clapbeard building is five bays wide and has a cen-
ter entrance. Tne door has am eliptical fanlight and gidelights and is situated under a
portico supported by slender columns. Windows have black ghutters znd six-over-gix ligh
At each corner of the hip roof is a tall brick chimney, and there ig a balustrade sround
the edge of the roof. On the north side of ‘the house is a red brick ell.

zontinued
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e 1400- 1489 —ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC —CONSERVATION —law __S.CIENCE
- L1E00.1589 —AGRICULTURE —ECONOMICS —LITERATURE —SCULPTURE
X 1800-1698 EARCHITECTURE —EQUCATION ZMILITARY __S0CIAL/HUMANITARI
¥_1700-1788 —ART wnENGIMEERING ~—MUsIC ~—THEATER
X.1800-1838 ~COMMEREE EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT . PHILOSQPHY __TRANSPORTATION
*.1500- _COMMUNICATIONS e NOUSTRY —~ROLITICE/GOVERNMENT __OTHER {SPECIFY}
~INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES ' BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Topsfield Town Common District is significant as the earliest area of gettlement in
town and as the center of town activity for three centuries. The district is also a sh
case of architectural styles, from the Parson Capeh House of 1683 to the Town Library c

1935,

Before recorded history the area now known as the Topsfield Common was roamed by Chied
Massorment and his braves from the Agauman Tribe, In 1630 English settlers pushed up
the Ipswich River and egtablished themselves in the area, which they nemed "New Meadows
1n 1650 the CGreat and General Court gave the residents of Mew Meadows "ye power to he :
towna" and approved the nama Topsfield, after Poppesfield, England, the ancestral home
many prominent town rasidenta. :

- Between 1630 and 1650 a training field was gat up on what is now the Common and surrour -

land. This field was used for training militia in early colonial times, and local Minu
Men gathered here hefore departing for Concord and Iexington and later Bunker Hill. T
also trained on the Common and at the Town Hall (¥7) during both World Wars T and II.

‘The American-Tegion headguarters were in the Town Hall for many years, and & monument

gtands acrose from the library as a memorial to those who foughtiin the Civil War.

The first meeting house in Topsfield was Built in 1703 om the site of the present Cong:
gational Church (#8), and a second meeting house was evected there in 1755-60. In 184.
building wasg moved to Salem where it was rebuilk on Boston Street and used as & tanner;
Town meetings and political »allies were later held in the downstairs hall (Union Hall
of the Parigh Houge (#3) from 1853 to 1873 and in the Town Hall (#7) from 1873 until
when space proved inadequate. Union Hall =nd the Town Hall were also used for dramati
presentations, conderts and lectures. After 1952 the Town Hall meeting room fell into
state of disrepair, but it was extensively renovated in 1975 as a Bicentennial Auditorx
and once again serves ag a ocenter for educational and cultural events. Town offices
police headquarters are still jocated in- the Town Hall, and the room to the left of th
main entrance has been in contimuous use A8 the town treasurer's office since 1B73.

The house at the corher of Main and Washington Btreets (#1) was tuilt in 1832 and oper
in the late ninetesenth and early twantieth centuries by Augustug W. Smith az & summer
The house was known for some time as Smith's Tavern and iz used as a residence today.

The Emerson-Jordan House (f#2) and the Emerson Center (#5) were both assocviated with T
fiald's well-known Emerscn family. Reversnd John Emerson first built his house in 173
and part of it was retained in the structure of the larger house built in 1808 by Will
gmerson. The Emerson Center was built’ ir-1814 by Joseph Emerson and later belonged to
daughter Harriet Jane Emerson and her husband Charles H. Holmes. Holmes was the gon ¢

John Holmes, the first U.8. Senator from Maine. ‘The houge was sold to the cgngregatic

continued
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The Town Library (#6) was built in 1935, using bagic plans prepared in 1512 by Harold
‘picld Keliogg. The brick classical revival building iz two stories and has a two-story
projecting portico supported by four ¢olumns. A large all to the rear was added in 1974,

The Town Hall (7) was built in 1873 by Topsfield's leading carpenter John H. Potter, usi
plang drawn up by Boston architects Lord and Fuller. The building exhibits characteristi
of the Chateasuesque and Stick gtylag. Tt is covered with white clapboards and measures
B0 by 46 feet. The facade is f£ive bays wide and the side elevations are six bays deep.
The rear portion of the Town Hall is two stories and the front.gquarter contains a third
fioor within the steep hip roof section. The central door stands under & 12~foot wide
porch supported by paired columns and a clock tower rises above it.

Next to the Town Hall is the Congregational Chuych (#8), built in 1842 under gontract to
Mark R. Jewett of Rowley, Massachusetts. The Gresk Revival church has two Ionic columns
in antig and on its square tower is a tall spire and four pinnacles.

At the southeact sorner of the district are two facing residences which serve as an apprc
to the district. The residence at 11 High SBtreet (#9) is a white claphoard structure whi
wag originally part of a larger housa puilt in 1756. This portion of the house was movec
from Main Street around 1900. The residence at 14 High Street (#10) iz a white shingled
- early twentieth century struciure with an attached garage at the east end.

#8;
Church on June 1, 1886, and servad ag a parsonage and now as offices and ¢lassrooms by th
church.

The Parish House (#3) of the-CQngregaﬁional Chuxch was originally built as the Methodist
Church which dissolved in the early twentiecn century. Today it gerves as a parish house
and a meeting place for local organizations.

Originally a gmall farming community, the town of Topsfield has experienced considerable
growth in the twantieth gentury. In 1940 the total population wag less than 1000. By
1961 there were 3550 residents, and today more than 5200 people live in Topsfield. Neve:
thelassg, the town has retained much of its rural charactexr, particularly in the Common
srea. Architecturally the district is distinguished by the varieily of struetures contals
in it which still have most of thelr original detail. The most recently consgtructad
building in the district is the Town Library (#6) (1933) which, although red brick and
therefore somewhat incengrous with its neighborz, nonetheless draws itg dignity and clas
gical lines from the other buildings around the Common. The oldest strubtiure in the dis
trict (1682) is the Parson Capen House (#4) (a National Historie Landmark) which is con-
sidered by many authorities to be one of the finest gurviving exampleg of Elizabethan

architecture in America. The EmersoancfdéH House {(#2) and the Emerson Center {#5) are
the two most handscome. Federal strugtures Th the Common area, and the former contains

continued
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paneling by the noted builder Samuel McIntive. Additional stylistic variety is provided
by the Town Hall (#7) and the Greek Revival Congregatignal Church (#8). The ball in
the church tower is inscribed "Revere and Company, Boston, 1B817" and was oxiginally in
the meeting house which stood on the mite before 1842, Together the buildings surzoundi:
the Common represent through their fine architectural quality the growth and deve lopment
of the town of Topsfield.

PP DTS N
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pow, George Francis. History of Topsfield. 1940,
Dupouy, Deborah. The Parson Capen Howme. 1370,
Topsfield Historical Society Collectiong. Vols, 1-31, (1895=1951)

[DGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 13.1 acres
UTM REFERENCES

AL 13]4,002,0,0) [4,712,212,2,0] B|L, 2| 1314,0]2,0,0] 4,7]2,2]4,4,0]|

ZONE EASTING NORTHING ZONE EASTING NOQRTHING
cil g 13]3,9740 4,7‘2!2|7I6|0|~- D| 1 I .

VERBAL EOUNDARY DESCRIPTION . digtrict encompasses the property lines for buildings
1-6, plus 9 and 10, comnecting back property lines by crossing Main Street, Howlett Stre
and High Strest. From the southwegterly corner of lot & the district boundary runs aloix
the submerged School Brook to High Streest Extension, thence along the center of that st
o Washington Btreet, and thence easterly along that street to where the boundary of lot
heginS-

LISTALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR FROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE QR COUNTY BO.U NDARIES

STATE CODE COUNTY COO0E
STATE CODE COUNTY I CODE
[E1FORM PREPARED BY

NAME / TITLE

Judy D. Dobbs, National Reg
ORGANIZATION

Magsachugetts Historical Commigesion ] ‘ ppril 1, 1976
ETREET & NUMBER ' TELEPHONME
294 Washington Street €17=727=-8470
TITY OR TOWN STATE |
Boston Magsachusetts 02108

[FISTATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER CERTIFICATION

THE EVALUATED SlGNlF!CANCE OF THIS PROPERTY WITHIN THE'STA'I"IT:'IS:
NATIONAL _— STATE s LOCA

As the designated State Historic Preservation Officer for the National Historic Fraservation Act.al 1866 (Public Law 89-665).1
hereby nominata this propery for inclusion in the National Register and certify that it has been evaluated according 1o the

criteria and procedures set forth by the National Park

Service. .
:ﬁ ¢
. [ /
| GTATE HISTORIC PRESERVATION OFFICER SIGNATURE .g..\ GM /& £ ‘,Q &’}/} i 2HEA_

TITLE

ector, Massachusetts Historig 1 Commissi
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TORSFIELD, MASSACHUSETTS
ESSEX COUNTY

Topafield Town Common District

#10.

The digkrict begins in the northwest corner at the back property linme of #1 and runs
eagterly along the back (northern) property lines of #2, 3 and 4; thence south
along the east property lina and then in a straight line 450 feet along praoperty #5
to a point where the boundary turns in a southeast direction and runs 200 feet,
thence along the east property line of #10 to the submerged School Brook. The.
boundary follows the brook to High Street Extension, and crosses to the. north

side of High Street Extension where it runs weet and then east around the cormer

of property #8, thence across Washington Street and along the west boundary of

41 +o the point of beginning. '



